
Questions for Fluor-BWXT Portsmouth 
OSWDF Infrastructure Phases 4 and 5 RFP 

Solicitation Number: FBP-17SC61909 
Dated 08/15/2017 

 

No. Question Answer 

1. What are the approximate earthwork quantities for this job? FBP approximate quantities will 
be provided via amendment 
with or before the CADD files. 
Contractor is still responsible 
for their own quantity take-
offs. 

2. What are the estimated volumes for the Residuum Harvesting 
items approximate? 

See response to Question 1 

3. Are the CADD files available to be provided for the 
contractor's benefit? 

CADD files will be provided via 
amendment. 

4. What estimated time line as to when you would be able to 
provide us with a CAD file as well as the PDF version of the 
prints instead of just the photo copied version? 

On or before 7/27/17. 

5. Would they be sent out to contractors who were at the pre-
bid? 

They will be posted on the FBP 
website. 

6. Due to the size, nature and multiple scopes of work options to 
price, would FBP grant a bid extension until August 17th? 

The bid will be extended until 
2PM EST August 21, 2017. 

7. Please clarify the contract award date? FBP intends to award as soon 
as Consent is obtained from 
DOE with NTP immediately 
afterwards upon obtaining 
Bonds and Insurance, the 
milestone activity schedule 
indicates NTP no later than 
12/31/17 

8. Please clarify the intended NTP date? FBP intends to award as soon 
as Consent is obtained from 
DOE with NTP immediately 
afterwards upon obtaining 
Bonds and Insurance, the 
milestone activity schedule 
indicates NTP no later than 
12/31/17 

9. Is the “release for approval” required to send information to 
subcontractors? 
 
 
 

Yes. However, CFC drawings 
will have “release for approval” 
before they are provided to the 
bidders. 

10. The option items completion date will extend for 2 months 
beyond the base contract.  It is uncertain which options may be 
selected.  Can a separate bid item be included to cover general 
condition items for the period of time beyond the base 
contract when option work may be performed?  
 
 

Yes, Section B will be revised. 
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11. Refer to specification 02100AR section 3.04.  Please describe 
the process for submittal and approval of conformance survey 
data prior to installation of subsequent elements of the work.  

Conformance Survey data is 
only required to be submitted 
upon request by the 
Construction Manager. The 
data should be verified to be 
within the stated tolerances, 
real time by project field 
oversight prior to advancing 
with any subsequent work.  

12. Refer to specification 02100AR 3.04 section 3 and 4. Please 
clarify the frequency of performance check survey 
documentation for the bottom of trench, top of finished 
backfill, top of pipe embedment and piping system for the 
utility installation.  
Will these conformance surveys be required to be performed 
by a licensed surveyor? 

Bottom of trench, top of 
backfill, and top of embedment 
shall be surveyed at the same 
locations as specified for the 
top of pipe in 02100AR section 
3.02.C.8. 
As stated in Section 1.04A, the 
P.S. is required to provide 
Oversight for all survey work in 
order to sign and seal the as-
built drawings (3.01F). He or 
she is not required to physically 
perform the conformance 
surveys. 

13. Raw Water Line DWG C-7 shows a four and a two bollard 
arrangement detail for use at Yard Hydrants.  Please clarify 
where each detail is required? 

Locations of the bollards 
(Details 22 & 23/C-7) are 
identified on drawing sheets C-
2, C-3, and C-4. 

 

14. How will the volume of clay processing be measured?   Loose cubic yards in the 
processed clay stockpile(s) 

15. Will the raw material stockpile be measured prior to processing 
or will the processed material be measured? 

Processed material. 

16. Please provide the technical specifications for the sanitary 
sewer system. 

Specifications 15059, 17100, 
and 02605 will be provided. For 
any reference on the drawings 
to specifications with the suffix 
BP, the contractor shall instead 
use the previously provided 
specifications with suffix AR.  

17. Refer to specification 02215AR 3.06 and 02100AR 3.04 section 
3.a 

(a) Survey conformance shots are required for the trench 
bottom, what tolerance is allowed? 

(b) Given that some trench bottoms will be excavated in 
rock and fine grading will be difficult, will this be 

(a) Trench bottom shall be near 
enough to elevation shown on 
drawings to insure bedding, 
pipe, and backfills will meet 
tolerances stated in 02215AR, 
3.06; 02270AR, 3.05, and 
02510AR, 3.16. 
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considered when determining bottom of trench 
tolerances? 

(c) Survey conformance shots are required for top of 
finished backfill.  What tolerance is allowed? 

 
(b) If required, on a case by 
case basis. 
 
(c) As stated in 02215AR, 3.06 

18. The geotechnical information provided indicates the presence 
of rock within the excavation limits; will rock blasting be 
permitted on the project? 

Rock blasting will not be 
considered at this time. 

19. The Proposal Pricing Breakdown Sheet calls for separate Phase 
4 & 5 pricing, but I cannot find a clear delineation between the 
phases in the plans or scope of work.  Would you please 
provide a phasing plan that delineates between Phase 4 and 
Phase 5, and a description of work that clearly defines what is 
included in each phase? 

The proposal pricing should be 
at least broke down so that the 
Base Period and each of the 11 
options can be evaluated. In 
addition, mobilization, 
demobilization, clean up and 
contract finish/closeout should 
be broken out.     

20. Is submitting this proposal through NNSA Ariba eSourcing 
required? 

The pricing portion of the 
proposal shall be put into NNSA 
Ariba eSourcing.  

21. Since the bid due date will be extended to August 21, 2017, will 
the date for questions also be extended? 

Yes, to August 10, 2017@ 
12:00 P.M. Eastern Daylight 

Savings Time 

22. Will a performance bond be required? Yes 

23. Will a payment bond be required? Yes 

24. When comparing the available documents to those specified in 
Section C – Statement of Work, the following drawings or 
documents were not available  

 Drawings x-780-C- 11418, 11419, & 11308 

  (Section C List) 

 Exhibit 6 (Section C List) 

 Tapping 48” Raw water Supply specification (Section C 
List) 

Previously answered via 
Amendment. 

25. Can a Work Plan Template in a word document be provided? The work plan is provided as an 
example. Each contractor is 
responsible for developing 
their work plan, including 
formatting. 

26. Where does the clearing and grubbing material go? See specification and Scope of 
Work. 

27. Exhibit 2 lists the Notice to Proceed (NTP) as December 31, 
2017.  During the pre-bid meeting, the NTP was stated as 
September 27, 2017.  Please clarify? 

December 31st is a “no-later 
than” date. FBP’s intention is to 
award and provide NTP as soon 
as possible. 

28. Exhibit 2 lists September 30, 2018 as the completion date for 
ALL options.  Please confirm the completion date for all 
options? 

Confirmed. 
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29. Can you provide CAD Drawings for the OSWDF Infrastructure 
Phase 4 & 5 project? 

See amendment 4. 

30. Can you provide a CAD drawing with the location of the borings 
(potential drawing is 01MAPSBOTTOMRES)? 

See question 75. 

31. Regarding Options 8 & 9, there appear to be two parking / 
trailer areas. The Parking and Trailer Complex is shown on 
drawing X-780-C-11404 and has some extremely irregular 
limits. Another Parking Area and Office Area is shown on 
drawing X-780-C-11405.  Which one is for Options 8 and 9 and 
delineate the individual limits of areas specified for Option 8 
and Option 9?   

See amendment 4. 

32. Will the area for Options 8 & 9 be rough graded prior to 
construction? 

Yes. 

33. Request FBP provide the contours that we will begin with and 
the proposed subgrade contours for Option 8 and Option 9? 

Amendment 4 

34. The base price includes the rough grading for Phases 4 & 5. 
There are several references to “Grading Plan”.  Please define 
which drawing depicts the borrow grading plan, the rough 
grading plan, and which drawing depicts the final grading plan 
for Phases 4 and 5? 

Amendment 4 

35. Delineate the area for the contractor facility and lay-down 
area? 

Phase 4/5 contractor facility 
and laydown area south of 
Sedimentation Pond 2, or as 
approved by Construction 
Manager prior to mobilization. 

36. The Proposal Pricing Breakdown Sheet calls for separate Phase 
4 & 5 pricing, but we cannot find a clear delineation between 
the phases in the plans or scope of work.  It is requested that 
FBP provide a phasing plan that delineates between Phase 4 
and Phase 5, and a description of work that clearly defines 
what is included in each phase (including the starting and 
stopping points for the rock drain and surface water channels)? 

Amendment 4 

37. Will the contours for the tie-in to the current work be as 
designed or should it be anticipate as additional work? 

Amendment 4 

38. Is the construction of the stockpile access road part of this 
RFP/contract? 

No. 

39. The description of Bid Option 6 calls for "13.8kV Power line and 
communications lines", but I can't find what type of 
communications lines are to be installed. There is a 6 strand 
9/125 Single Mode Fiber Optic Cable installed at Pole 556E. Are 
we to continue this 6 strand 9/125 single mode fiber optic 
cable to the intersection of East Connector Road and 
Temporary Construction Access Road? Is there a specification 
available for this fiber cable or any other communications 
cables? 

At this time Engineering does 
not know of any requirement 
for fiber optic cable to be 
installed at the Clay Processing 
Area, therefore, it was not 
shown on the design drawings 
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40. Bid Option 6, C4.20.1 calls for the 13.8kV Power line and 
communications lines to be installed from the existing tie-in 
location at Pole 556E up to the Clay Processing Area. Option 6, 
C4.20.2 calls for the 13.8kV Power Line and communications 
lines to be installed from the Clay Processing Area up to the 
intersection of East Connector Road and Temporary 
Construction Access Road at the Office Trailer Area. It appears 
the overall line is to be installed from existing Pole 556E to the 
intersection of East Connector Road and Temporary 
Construction Access Road at the Office Trailer Area. Are we to 
assume a communications line junction box or splice enclosure 
of some type is to be installed at the Clay Processing Area, to 
allow the communications lines to be tapped into at that point, 
or do we end the communications cable(s) from Pole 556E at 
that point, and install the second communications cable(s) 
from the Clay Processing Area to the intersection of East 
Connector Road and Temporary Construction Access Road? 

The communication lines shall 
be routed from pole 556A to 
the office trailers area beneath 
the power lines on the poles 
installed to get power to those 
areas as shown on the design 
drawings. 

41. Are any of the power {poles} or communications materials 
being furnished by Fluor BWXT, or is everything to be 
furnished by the Contractor? 

FBP is not furnishing any of the 
equipment (poles, 
communication materials, etc.).  
The Contractor shall furnish all 
materials.  

42. Some of the Electrical detail drawings show roadway 
luminaires, pole mounted transformers, secondary distribution 
equipment, etc. shown on the poles. Does this project include 
any pole-mounted lights, transformers, secondary distribution 
equipment, etc.? 

The design issued showed 
power connections to the 
various locations (clay 
processing area; East/West 
Maintenance Buildings, etc.); 
secondary distribution 
equipment.  All of this to be 
furnished by the Contractor.  

43. Can the question deadline of 8/3/17 be extended till at least 
8/14/17? 

The question deadline of 
8/3/17 was extended to 
8/10/17 

44. More than one layer in the CADD file that can be interpreted as 
the existing surface.  Can the existing surface we are to use for 
bidding purposes be sent separately? 

Amendment 4 

45. Are not able to determine a clear distinction between the 
phase 4 and phase 5 limits. Is a phase plan available for bidders 
that clearly defines the phase limits to allow for takeoff and 
proper allocation to respective bid items for each phase? 

Amendment 4 

46. Drawing X-780-C-10525 shows Phase 4 and Phase 5 combined 
limits of work.  This does not match drawings C2 and C3.  Given 
the proposal is broken out into phases can a phase plan 
defining each phase area for the work to be included? 

See Amendment 4 
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47. Please confirm that drawings C2 and C3 are what is intended 
for phase 4 and 5? 

See recent amendment 
identifying limits of Phase 4 
and 5. 

48. The bid form includes one bid total inclusive of phase 4, phase 
5, and options 1 through 10. What is the basis for award?  Low 
base bid, low base bid plus options? 

Lowest Price Technically 
Acceptable 

49. Are the soil boring locations available in a CADD file for area D? 
If not, can the bore locations be shown on a copy of the site 
development plan? 

See question 75 

50. If a work is shut down due to weather delays, will the allowable 
working week be extended? 

Case-by-Case upon approval by 
FBP. 

51. Please confirm that the intent is for site phases 4 and 5 and the 
borrow area are to be balanced regarding excavation and 
embankment? 

Confirmed. 

52. It appears that the following five (5) plan sheet drawings are 
missing from the files that have been uploaded so far: C-16, C-
17, C-26, C-27, & C-28.       
 
 

C-26, C-27, and C-28 are not in 
scope.  
 
C-16 and C-17 will be provided. 

53. Please confirm that we will be permitted to get dust water 
from the existing raw water line? 

Yes. 

54. Specification 02200AR “Earthwork” calls for 4’ construction 
fence and or galvanized wire fence.  Please clarify the 
location(s) of the fence work? 

Section 02200AR Article 3.02A 
describes where this fence is 
required. 

55. Is the contractor responsible to include the CQC subcontractor 
in our proposal? 

No, FBP is providing the CQC 
Contractor. 

56. Please confirm that the contractor will not be required to 
provide Railroad Protective Insurance for this project since the 
work does not cross the rail line adjacent to the work? 

No 

57. The proposal does not discuss demolition or abandonment of 
existing structures. Are there any structures on the site for 
which we would be responsible for removing? 

No. 

58. Under which Pay Item for Schedule B.2-1 are we to include the 
Surface Water Management System items for Storm pipes, 
inlets, manholes, headwalls etc. that are detailed on the plans? 

These items should be included 
in the Rough Grade pay items 
corresponding to the Phase in 
which they are located. 

59. There are several drawings and documents referenced in 
Amendment 001 and 002 that I do see links for on the website. 
For example, I do not see the following drawings from 
Amendment 1: 

Previously answered via 
Amendment 4. 

60. Drawing C-30 depicts the Pond 4 Access road but I find no 
details on surfacing (i.e. stone thickness, geotextile, asphalt 
thickness, etc.). Which surfacing build-up detail should be used 
for this access road? 

Sheet C-30 calls out detail 
52/C-33 “Aggregate Surfacing” 
for the Pond 4 access road. 
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61. Since blasting is not allowed on this project, would it be 
possible to schedule a test dig so that we have the opportunity 
to gain an understanding of shale and rock hardness? 

For bid purposes, assume all 
rock can be excavated. 

62. Addendum #1 included a new plan sheet numbered X-780-C-
11501 - GRADING PLAN NORTH. This new sheet depicts 
completely different contours from what is shown on X-780-C-
11405 - SITE GRADING PLAN EAST (they cover the same 
footprint). Please clarify the intent of the new GRADING PLAN 
NORTH sheet as it does not appear to line up with any of the 
other drawings. 

Grading Plan North was 
deleted from the scope via 
amendment. Grading Plan 
South and Central are the 
drawings relevant to the 
contract. 

63. Regarding drawing X-780-C-11436 – ALTERNATE ROAD 
DETAILS; Are these alternate paving details a part of this 
contract and if so, under which pay item should these 
alternates to the base bid be priced? 

See Section C description of 
Option 5. 

64. The Raw Water Line file posted to the website is missing ten 
(10) sheets. The missing sheets are G-3, C-6, E-1 through E-6, S-
1, and S-2. Can a copy of these drawings be provided? 

These drawings are not part of 
this contract. 

65. In the Sewer, Water, Power Drawings- plan sheet X-230A-C-
33240 calls for 2 each Booster Pump Station. Station 2 can be 
located - which is on sheet X-230A-C-33237. The location of 
Booster Pump Station No. 1 cannot be found; as there is no 
plan sheet X-230A-C-33236. 

Booster Station #1 is a future 
installation that is not part of 
this scope, drawing X-230A-C-
33236 is not in scope. 

66. Is there only one Booster Pump Station? If there is a second 
pump station, please provide plan sheet X-230A-C-33236. 

See question 65 

67. Can the Work Plan Template referenced in SOW C.4.4.1 (B) be 
provided in a word document? 

See question 25 

68. During the pre-bid meeting, several drawings with areas 
highlighted were referenced.  I believe it was stated that these 
drawings would be forwarded to the contractors.  Could you 
please forward the drawings? 

All drawings needed by the 
bidders have been provided. 

69. When comparing the available documents to those specified in 
Section C – Statement of Work, the following drawings or 
documents were not available: Drawings X-780-C-11418,11419, 
and 11308 

Previously answered via 
Amendment 4. 

70. Please delineate the proposed limits for the contractor’s lay-
down area? 

See question 35 

71. Drawings X-780-C-11501 and X-780-C-11507, that were issued 
with Amendment 001, have a Key Map that shows drawings A, 
B, and C. Drawings X-780-C-11500, 11501, and 11505 were 
previously issued as part of the original drawings sent out prior 
to the pre-bid meeting. Drawing 11500 was listed as Sheet 
Number A. Drawing 11501 was listed as Sheet Number B, and 
11505 was listed as Sheet Number C. The recently issued 
drawings now have 11501 as Sheet Number C, 11507 as Sheet 
Number A, and 11500 was not re-issued.  Please re-issue and 

Sheets B and C have been 
issued via Amendment. Sheet A 
is not part of this contract. 
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include the sheet Numbers A, B, and C that corresponds to the 
Key Map. 

72. The newly issued X-780-C-11501 and 11507 Grading Plans do 
not correlate with the X-780-C-11404 and 11405 Grading Plans. 
Please provide a complete revised Grading Plan for Phases 4 & 
5. 

See previously issued 
amendment 4. 

73. Drawings X-780-C-11501 and X-780-C-11507, that were issued 
with Amendment 001, have a Key Map that shows drawings A, 
B, and C. Drawings X-780-C-11500, 11501, and 11505 were 
previously issued as part of the original drawings sent out prior 
to the pre-bid meeting. Drawing 11500 was listed as Sheet 
Number A. Drawing 11501 was listed as Sheet Number B, and 
11505 was listed as Sheet Number C. The recently issued 
drawings now have 11501 as Sheet Number C, 11507 as Sheet 
Number A, and 11500 was not re-issued.  Please re-issue and 
include the sheet Numbers A, B, and C that corresponds to the 
Key Map. 

See recent amendment 4. 

74. Please provide a description of work that clearly defines what is 
included in each phase (including the starting and stopping 
points for the rock drain and surface water channels)? 

Amendment 4 

75. Please provide a CAD drawing with the location of the borings 
(potential drawing is 01MAPSBOTTOMRES found in Geotech 
Report)? 

CAD file for borings will not be 
provided. 

76. Is the construction of the Stockpile Access Road shown on 
drawing X-780-C-11465 part of this contract? 

No 

77. Please confirm that the “LTS Line” on drawing X-780-C-11500 is 
not part of this contract. 

Confirmed 

78. Is topsoil to be placed on areas that will receive temporary or 
permanent seeding? 

Not in current scope at this 
time. 

79. What is to be done with the rejects from the Clay Processing? Contract is to stockpile 
separately within the Clay 
processing area. 

80. Please provide the name of the electrical company currently on 
site? 

West End Electric 

81. Confirm Temporary Water Filling Station Tower #1 is by others. Water Filling station riser #1 is 
the location for the bidders to 
provide their own drop tank for 
construction water. 

82. Confirm Temporary Water Filling Station Tower #2 is by others. The contractors will be able to 
utilize the Water Filling Station 
#2 riser assembly for 
construction water once they 
have completed the 
installation. 
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83. It is not clear which Surface Water Channels are to be 
constructed with this project and which channels will be, or 
have been, constructed under another contract.  Please clarify 
exactly which SWCs are to be constructed under this contract 
and to which bid line item they belong. 

SWCs within the footprint 
identified in Amendment 4 
shall be installed 

84. It is not clear which Surface Water Piping and manholes are to 
be constructed with this project and which SWP & Manholes 
will be, or have been, constructed under another contract.  
Please clarify exactly which SWPs and Manholes are to be 
constructed under this contract and to which bid line item they 
belong. 

SWCs within the footprint 
identified in Amendment 4 
shall be installed 

85. There is no mention of installing manholes in the base bid. The 
first mention is in Option 3 & 4.  The installation of some of the 
storm water management components seems to be better 
suited for installation during the base bid (manhole 350 on 
drawing X-780-C-11407). If manholes are part of the base 
contract, please confirm to which line item the manhole costs 
belong. 

Installation of field drainage as 
identified in Section C Articles 
4.17.2 and 4.18.2 shall be 
moved to the Base Contract 
scope in Article 4.11. 

86. Is any portion of SWP 121,125, 126, and 127, and associated, 
and SWCs manholes part of this project (drawing X-780-C-
11465)? 

No. 

87. Are SWP 307, MH 350, and SWP 308 part of this contract? If so, 
which prices line item? 

Yes, those items are in scope as 
part of the base contract. 
Article 4.11 (see answer to 
question 85) 

88. Drawing X-780-C-11404 and 11433 designate aggregates to be 
placed within the stream crossing grading area with no defined 
limits as having “Aggregate Base Surfacing” and “Heavy Duty 
Aggregate Surfacing”. Are these areas part of this contract and 
if so, what line item does the cost go into and can you 
delineate the limits of aggregate placement? 

X-780-C-11424 and X-780-C-
11425 more clearly depict the 
horizontal boundaries for 
Heavy Duty Aggregate 
surfacing at each of the Water 
Fill Station locations. 

89. Please confirm that Water Booster Pump Station #2 is to be 
included in Option #2? 

Confirmed. 

90. Option 2: Note 1 on drawing X-230A-C-33238 and 33239 states 
the steel casing shall be open cut unless final grades have been 
reached.  Jack and Bored will be utilized if final grades have 
been reached, unless open cut is authorized by the OSWDF 
Construction Manager.  Please confirm that open cut can be 
performed. 

Confirmed. 

91. Option 3: Is aggregate surfacing only for the road sections 
identified in SOW C.4.11.2? 

Yes. 

92. Option 4: Is aggregate surfacing only for the road sections 
identified in SOW C.4.11.3? 

Yes. 

93. Option 5: Is the aggregate surfacing of the OSWDF Access Road 
only for the sections specified in the base bid (SOW C.4.11.2)? 

Yes. 
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94. Option 5: Since varying degrees of each road/spur are outside 
our work area shown on X-780-C-10525, can you provide the 
contours that we will start with in order to prepare roadway 
subgrade and aggregate surfacing? 

Amendment 4 

95. Option 7: What is the design for tying into the existing OSWDF 
asphalt pavement? 

Drawing will be added with the 
question responses. 

96. Option 7: drawing X-780-C-11413 shows intersection of OSWDF 
Access Road and West Connector Road.  Please delineate the 
limits of asphalt through this intersection. 

Pavement limits are shown on 
drawing X-780-C-11422. 

97. Option 7: Please confirm that the asphalt for the OSWDF 
Access Road terminates at Station 40+43.4 as shown on 
drawing X-780-C-11414. 

Confirmed. 

98. What is the design for terminating asphalt surface to a soil 
surface? 

Soil shall be re-graded as 
necessary to match asphalt 
surface. 

99. What is the design for terminating asphalt surface to an 
aggregate surface? 

Aggregate shall be re-graded as 
necessary to match asphalt 
surface. 

100. Option 7: This option requires the East Connector Road to be 
paved with asphalt but we are not sure which line item covers 
the placement of aggregate on the East Connector Road.  
Please specify. 

The portion of East Connector 
Road that receives aggregate is 
identified in Article 4.11 of 
section C. Placement of the 
aggregate is part of Option 5. 

101. Option 7 requires traffic signs to be installed.  Are pavement 
markings also required? 

Yes. 

102. Options 7, 8, & 9: Please confirm that these three asphalt 
paving options do not include the cost for purchase and 
placement of dump rock fill and aggregate base. The cost will 
only include the purchase and placement of asphalt. 

Correct. 

103. Options 8 & 9: There appear to be two parking / trailer areas. 
The Parking and Trailer Complex is shown on drawing X-780-C-
11404 and has some extremely irregular limits. Another Parking 
Area and Office Area is shown on drawing X-780-C-11405.  
Which one is for Options 8 and 9 and can you delineate the 
individual limits of areas specified for Option 8 and Option 9?   
 

Trailer/Parking area shown on 
drawing X-780-C-11404 is 
already constructed. Please see 
amendment 4 for further 
clarification. 

104. Option 8 & 9: Drawing X-780-C-11404 (and others) designate 
general areas with no defined limits as having “aggregate base 
surfacing” and “Heavy Duty Aggregate Surfacing”. Are these 
areas part of this contract and if so, what line item does the 
cost go into and can you delineate the limits of aggregate 
placement? 

See question #88 

105. Option 8 & 9: If the areas denoted as “aggregate base 
surfacing” and “heavy duty aggregate surfacing” are to be 
completed under this contract, are these areas up to grade or 
will filling and rough grading be required? 

Filling and rough grading within 
the limits identified in 
Amendment 4 will be required. 
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106. Option 8 & 9: There appears to be a berm between the Office 
Area and Parking Area.  Is this berm to be constructed per the 
aggregate berm detail or is it a soil berm? 

This berm will already be 
constructed. 

107. Option 8 & 9: Please provide an asphalt detail for the Office 
and Parking areas. 

Amendment 4 

108. Option 8 & 9: Both of these options require signs and stripping, 
but we do not find a drawing depicting the signs or stripping for 
the Parking Area or the Office Trailer Area. Please provide. 

Signs and Striping in the trailer 
and parking area are not 
required at this time. 

109. There is no mention of paving the West Connector Road – 
please confirm that this road does not get paved under this 
contract or the options. 

Option 7 will include paving 
West Connector Road as shown 
on the drawings. 

110. Is the guardrail to be included in the base bid, the aggregate 
surfacing options, or the asphalt surfacing options? 

Guardrail should be included in 
the finish surfacing option for 
the associated road sections. 

111. Are the portable concrete barriers to be included in the base 
bid, the aggregate surfacing options, or the asphalt surfacing 
options? 

Those would be included in 
Option 1 for the Water Fill 
Station Riser Assemblies. 

112. Refer to Solicitation Section C.4.24.2.   
a.  Please clarify the expectations for processed clay 
b. Will raw materials consist of residuum only or will shale 
materials also be required to be processed? 
c. What is to be done with waste or non-clay materials resulting 
from the processing efforts? 
d. Will the processed clay remain within the limits of the Clay 
Processing Area? 

a. Clay processing specification 
will be provided should the 
Option be exercised. 
b. Only residuum will be 
processed as part of this 
contract. 
c. see question 79 
d. Yes, in the Clay Stockpiling 
area. 

113. The Answers to Questions indicate a potential NTP date of 
12/31/17.  Section F.1 included in Amendment 001 indicates a 
performance period of 390 days, a base completion date of No 
Later Than July 30, 2018 and all options completed No Later 
Than September 30, 2018.  
a. Will the performance period of 390 days apply to the base 
contract or options? 
b. The performance period of 390 days will result in a 
completion date later than the “No Later Than” dates listed.  
Please clarify the requirements or define which requirement 
will take precedence. 
 

Period of Performance is 
dependent upon Notice to 
Proceed date. 

114. Refer to specification section 02200AR 3.02.A   Orange safety 
fence is described in the specifications as required around 
trenches and excavations.  What are the expectations for 
safety fencing around trenching for the installation of the 
underground utilities?  Will safety fencing be required only at 
the completion of each day’s work for open excavations or will 
safety fence be required during all open trench activities? 

Only required for unattended 
open excavations at the end of 
each day’s work, or as needed 
for safe work. 
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115. Refer to drawing x-780-c-11448 Surface Water Management 
System – Channel Details.  Specifically channels 203, 204, 205, 
and 213 the detail suggests that the entire slopes are to be 
lined with Rip Rap.  Is this the intent?  Some of these ditches 
will have some extremely long slope lengths, is this correct?   

The channel lining is to be the 
minimum depth “B” shown in 
the table on drawing X-780-C-
11448. 

116. Dwg X-780 Typical Casing Spacer Configuration Detail note 1 
requires bituminous coating inside and out for casing pipes.  
The casing pipe information for the Raw Water Line does not 
appear to require the same bituminous coating.  Will the casing 
pipes for the Raw Water Line require bituminous coatings? 

Casing Pipe for Raw Water line 
shall be in accordance with 
Specification 02510AR. Casing 
pipe for Potable Water and 
Sanitary Sewer shall be in 
accordance with X-780-C-
33203. 

117. Dwg -780-C-33204 section 3.2.1 1.04 requires a # 12 wire to be 
installed alongside all plastic pipe.  Dwg X-780 Utility Trench 
Detail requires a magnetic marking tape but does not indicate 
the # 12 wire.  Please clarify what is required. 

Tracer wire is required for 
Potable Water and Sanitary 
Sewer lines, but not for the 
Raw Water or culvert piping. 

118. Will contractors be allowed to work 5 day/week at 10 hr per 
day? Will contractors be allowed to work double shift? 

Bid on 4 days. 

119. Regarding Raw Water Item Section, on Sheet X-780-M-11314: 
what materials are to be used for the actual building enclosure 
for the booster station itself?  

Not in scope. 

120. It is assumed that heating for this structure will be by others 
unless further clarified; is this assumption correct? 

Not in scope. 

121. Could a color coded drawing be provided that delineates the 
work areas of OSWDF, like the one that was shown at the pre-
bid meeting?  

Amendment 4 

122. Please provide a CAD/.xml file for the existing grades of 
previous phases that Fluor-BWXT/Portsmouth believes will be 
the base grades for the Infrastructure Phase 4&5 project. 

Amendment 4 

123. Please provide a CAD/.xml file for the proposed Infrastructure 
Phase 4 & 5 grading, including the OSWDF borrow area. 

Amendment 4 

124. There seems to be missing drawing x-780-G-11308.  This 
drawing was to be added or updated based on addendum #2. 

Previously answered via 
Amendment 4. 

125. Please identify which channels, pipes, manholes are to be 
constructed for the Phase 4 and Phase 5 project and which RFP 
line item we should incorporate their costs. 

See previous answers. 

126. Drawing X-780-C-10525 provides the Limits of Work for Phase 4 
/ Phase 5.  It appears that mass excavation / rough grading may 
be required outside the limits shown on Drawing X-780-C-
10525. Please confirm if mass excavation / rough grading will 
be required in the areas bounded by the West Connector Road 
to the west, the OSWDF Access Road to the north, the 
Temporary Construction Road to the south, and the OSWDF 
Access Road & OSWDF Access Spur to the east for the base bid 
or any option.  If mass excavation will be required in these 

Amendment 4. 
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areas, please provide the intended base grades (starting grades 
for this contract) and proposed rough grades. 

127. Please provide the estimated earthwork quantities that were 
stated during the pre-bid meeting will be sent out to the 
bidders for (we realize we still need to run our own quantities): 
• Topsoil 
• Residuum 
• Soil Excavation 
• Rock Excavation 
• Fill 

Amendment 4 

128. Statement of Work Items C 4.8, C 4.10, and C 4.11 appear to 
suggest some redundancy.  Please provide the differences 
between these items. 

Rough grading of the roads will 
be removed from 4.8 and 4.10. 

129. Because there are several drawings that are absolutely integral 
to preparing an appropriate proposal to Fluor-
BWXT/Portsmouth.  It request the bid due date be extended to 
COB August 25, 2017. 

Bid due date will not be 
extended at this time. 

130.  With regards to the clay processing, will the contractor have 
the entire clay processing area as shown on the plans available 
to set up the processing equipment and to stockpile as best fits 
his needs or will specific locations for the processing operation 
and stockpile(s) be required? 

Yes. 

131. If excess material is generated, above and beyond what is 
required to make the fills within this scope of work, where will 
the excess material be placed? 

Contractor will only be 
required to excavate in the 
Borrow Area to the extent 
necessary to complete the fills. 

132. With regards to the clay processing, will the contractor have 
the entire clay processing area as shown on the plans available 
to set up the processing equipment and to stockpile as best fits 
the contractor’s needs or will specific locations for the 
processing operation and stockpile(s) be required? 

Duplicate 

134. Please clarify which areas outside of the project roadways that 
are to be Finish Graded and receive Aggregate surfacing under 
Option # 3 and # 4. 

Areas within the boundaries 
provided in Amendment 4. 

133. Is the contractor responsible to excavate to the lines and 
grades shown in the borrow areas?   

See 131. 

135. Are the aggregate surfaced roadways to be constructed to 
Alternate Roadway Details? 
 

Yes, as part of Option 5, the 
Alternate Details on Sheet C-34 
are to be used for the portions 
of those roads within the limits 
shown on drawing X-780-C-
10525 

136. The roadway sections between the Alternate and Regular 
details are significantly different.  If a roadway is installed to 
the alternate detail under Option #5 will these aggregates then 
be removed and replaced with the aggregates types and 

Yes. 
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thickness based on the Asphalt details and paid for under 
Option 7? 

 


